	PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS



	Vendors should carefully review the Questions and Answers.  Some answers have been edited or modified for correction.  If vendors feel that there is a discrepancy between the verbal answers provided at the pre-proposal conference and the answers provided herein, the answers provided in this document supersede the verbal answers.

	ID 
	RFP Section
	Question
	Answer

	1
	 
	How will answers to questions be provided after today and when will you be committed to providing answers?  
	The City will provide answers in writing and will post them to the RFP website, as they become available.  The City will answer questions as quickly as possible and will try to provide courtesy notices, but proposers are responsible for checking for answers, updates and Addenda on the RFP website.

	2
	2.1
	What are you using to document your as-is business processes?
	Believe we are using Visio swim-lane diagrams.

	3
	2.1
	What % complete is documentation for as-is business processes and when will it be done?
	SCL is currently approximately 20-30% done with business process documentation for WAMS and OMS.  We plan to finish this documentation effort for our existing processes by the end of March. We feeling fairly confident with this schedule. Both WAMS and OMS as-is business process documentation should be done by time the implementation Vendor comes on board.  The recommendation for the design and implementation of to-be business processes is being left for the implementation vendor.

	4
	2.4
	Is there a compatibility units library done already?  
	No, some groups do have some standards and templates/quasi compatible units should be a good starting point moving into Phase 1.  Planning for compatible units implementation is part of Phase 1 of WAMS.  Formal development of Standards and Compatible Units to populate the WAMS is part of the Lifecycle Asset Management Program with work starting in 2010 and significantly complete in 2012.

	5
	2.4.4
	Why did you choose 2010? Was date chosen because of a perceived dependencies with the asset inventory work with the LAMP Program?
	2010 was chosen (for compatible units) because that's the earliest City Light thought we could get it started.  If it can realistically be done earlier, let us know.  The end of LAMP is 2012, after which we should be in a "steady state" for our Asset Management Programs.  The first phase of WAMS software implementation ends in 2010.  The second phase of WAMS should let us populate compatible units and tie in with design and constructions standards is expected to be a late 2010 through 2012 effort.  At the same time we expect to move Generation Maximo users to the new system.

	6
	OMS SW
	Are your reporting standards NERC/PERT P?? Standards? (Couldn't catch this.)
	No, do not have any reporting standards for this project.

	7
	 
	Are you going to adhere to canned reports?
	We do not encourage customize reports, but recognize that some custom reports may be needed and want to allow for that. 

	8
	 
	Does IT staff have any depth in writing reports or interest is writing reports, or is this something you'd like the vendor will do?  
	We are looking to the vendor to take the lead, but we do have some pockets of expertise. We absolutely want to get our skill set up by the end of the project, so SCL can write and maintain reports. Knowledge transfer is a key component to the whole project, but can't commit to how much SCL will be able to do.

	9
	2.8
	Are you looking for a Train the Trainer approach for End User Training?
	Yes, we are looking for leadership in the development of training materials by the implementation vendor, but we do believe the train the trainer approach would be the most effective, so we would expect the implementation vendor to team with us for the pilot user group and then we would take the lead for the ultimate training delivery. Additional information provided in Section 3 of the RFP. 

	10
	2.8
	Do you have End User Trainers identified?
	We will have trainers identified.

	11
	3.0
	Communications, Change Management and Training are typically tightly integration and often there is a certification test included.  Do you plan to have a training certification testing as part of this project? Also, do you anticipate a help desk for end users? Looking for feedback on how you plan to integrate Communications, Change Management and Training.
	We want to make sure training is not just on the system, but on also the business processes.  Agree that integration between communications, change management and training is important. Have not thought through training certification program, and would certainly welcome your recommendations on that. We expect to be ready before we go live and we expect to validate that.  Another component of the communications is the integration of communication plans across the Software implementations, Business Process Changes and the LAMP Program.

	12
	3.0
	Have you thought about a pilot implementation (for example by geographical area) as part of your strategy?
	We believe breaking the project into components reduces risks (avoiding a big bang implementation), so we are open to the idea of starting with a pilot area and then expanding. Please include this in your recommendation.  Geographically, we are not spread out like a lot of utilities, so phasing geographically may not be the best approach, but there are options.

	13
	pg 40
	Can you clarify on page 40 where you describe the 50% discount on rates?  Is there any limit on the required scope increases?
	We are requesting a discounted rate for future additions to the contract "bucket of hours" that is set aside for custom development work.  It is our goal to minimize custom development work on the project and to scope work to fit within the agreed upon hours bucket.  

	14
	3.0
	Can you talk at high level about the areas of change that you see as most challenging?
	SCL employees want to provide excellent customer service and really care about providing reliable electric service.  The Utility also has many experts who have their own "expert" way of doing things, and may be resistant to following standardized business processes.  In addition, we are excellent at putting out fires but not at preventing them.  There have been significant silos within SCL and although we are making progress to remove them, we are looking to the implementation vendor to help us with this.

	15
	4.0
	Unable to open pdf for Bond Letter.
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	16
	8.1.2
	Is there such a thing as a Partial Proposal?  
	For this procurement, No.  The City will not accept a partial proposal.  We are looking for a Systems Integrator to provide end to end leadership and support throughout the entire project life cycle, for both WAMS and OMS project.  While we reserve the right to award multiple contracts, our intent is to have one vendor implement both WAMS and OMS.

	17
	 
	What would be the expectation for the Vendor to work with Unions related to changes from the to-be processes?
	SCL would not expect the Vendor to directly work with the unions; that would be a City Light effort.  We do expect help and advice to prepare for our discussions with the unions. We anticipate that some Business Process Changes (BPC) City Light will be able to implement directly, others we'll negotiate and implement as we go,  and still others may need to have an interim solution and defer the final BPC for future contract negotiations.

	18
	 
	Document Management - Are you looking to scan current documents or are you planning to continue to use paper?
	We currently have scanners in place and IT is looking to purchase a document management system in 2009. This functionality is not in our project scope. 

	19
	2.7.7
	Are you open to using other tools than those listed on page 31?
	Yes, if you have recommendations on tools please propose them, but be sure to include associated costs in your financial proposal.

	20
	 
	Are you looking for implementation costs or want tools warranty costs too?
	Yes, please include purchase, implementation and warranty costs for any tools you propose.  Oracle will provide warranty on Oracle Software separately.

	21
	 
	Will scope be for all phases?
	The Proposers are expected to bid on WAMS Project Phases 1 and 2 and the OMS Project.  There may be an option to extend for the "future" phasing.  SCL is interested in phasing proposals from the Proposers that improve upon the Phasing suggested in the RFP.

	22
	Sect 1.3.1
	Section 1.3.1 identifies 9 areas of improvement.  On preventive maintenance and standards areas, would like clarification on the scope.  Does this include simple scheduling or complex scheduling?  For example, are design of large structures to be included?  Would you be open to proposals including additional software to support this functionality requirement? 
	Presently, our Power Production group (Generations) uses Maximo that does link to and from MS Project.  We hope to maintain this functionality, if not improve it.  Since we have not completed a Fit/Gap Analysis yet, we do not know what how well the WAMS product works for scheduling and if gaps will need to be addressed in other ways -- maybe even by a software product interfaced with Oracle products (e.g. a "plug-in").  We are looking to the vendor to provide this expertise and welcome recommendations in this area.  City LIght is looking at providing both simple and complex scheduling.

	23
	 
	Are you looking for our recommendation for time based and condition based maintenance processes? 
	The system needs to accommodate both time based and condition based maintenance processes.  We will work within the NERC requirements for maintenance and maintenance tracking.  For more information on the maintenance strategies and the LAMP plan, see Appendix D of this RFP.

	24
	2.4.5 and 2.5.5
	The RFP shows a breakdown of users.  To what level of organization does this include (Managers, Supervisors, workforce linemen, substation techs)?  Assume these counts apply to training as well?
	Yes, assume these counts apply to training as well.  All levels of the organization are included, but it varies by group.  For example, in some groups a supervisor schedules work, in another it is a Crew Coordinator or a technician.  Exactly who should be included will be part of our business process discussion.  Please see Appendix B: EUSP RFP for more information.  Specifically, Appendix A of the EUSP RFP lays out SCL's organizational structure, and Appendix B under "Organization Roles/Work Activities" look at page 57 for Scenario 1; page 62  for Scenario 2; and pages 65 through 67 on Scenario 3. 

	25
	2.4.5 and 2.5.5
	Could you expand on the type of positions in the organizations.  Would contract employees be included?
	Attached to the Implementation RFP is the original software RFP (Electric Utility Solution Portfolio RFP) as Appendix B.  The EUSP RFP has it's own set of Appendices.  To better understand SCL's organization refer to Appendix A of the EUSP RFP.  The following list of groups and roles may be modified through the "to-be" business process efforts and are guesstimates based on current processes -
(1) Customer Care - Technical Metering (meter electricians) crew chiefs, coordinators and timekeepers. Also Electrical Service Representatives and the Large Projects Management groups.
(2) Energy Delivery Operations - Crew Coordinators in line, network and stations groups as well as supervisors; timekeepers; some groups may have crew members update maintenance records and time entry directly, as well as trouble call entry by substation operators.
(3) Energy Delivery Engineering - Engineers, supervisors and managers for Transmission, Distribution and Substation groups for equipment analysis, work order entry and timekeeping. 

(4) Asset Management - Engineers and strategic advisors for equipment analysis, work order entry and timekeeping.
(5) System Operations - Power Dispatchers to view where work is in the pipeline and to enter trouble calls into the system.
(6) Utility Support Services - Skilled crafts shops (crew chiefs, crew coordinator, timekeeper and journey workers) to enter and update work; may also include Facilities (HVAC) personnel.
(7) Power Production - Generation engineering and field crews presently use Maximo and are expected to move to WAMS in phase 2.  Will need to issue/receive work to/from MAXIMO and WAMS.  Work groups similar to those listed in Energy Delivery Operations and Energy Delivery Engineering.
(8) Finance, Accounting and Others - To compare estimates to actuals, review accounting and provide support.

	26
	 
	Will SCL be responsible for shutting down legacy of systems that are being replaced? 
	The vendor should include this body of work in the project plans.   Data conversion from the legacy system to the new system would be the responsibility of the vendor.   We would expect that SCL responsibility would include backups of data for archival, de-installing the application and databases from the server and possibly retiring the server.  

	27
	 
	Are vehicles and equipment included?
	At this point, we plan to include the inventory and scheduling (reservation) of vehicles and equipment, but maintenance of the fleet is not included.  Vehicle maintenance is done by another City department and they have their own vehicle maintenance system.  This may change as part of the Fit/Gap Analysis.  
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PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND     
THE CITY OF SEATTLE 
 
We, __________________________________________________________________________(“Principal”), and 
         [Insert full legal name of Vendor / Contractor]  
___________________________________________________________________________________________, 
 a___________________ corporation  
[Insert legal name of Surety and its state of incorporation]  
authorized to transact surety business in the State of Washington, (“Surety”), are held and firmly bound unto The City of 
Seattle (“City”), as Obligee, in an amount equal to the total compensation and expense reimbursement payable to Principal 
for satisfactory completion of Principal’s work under Contract No. ____________________ between Principal and City, 
which total is initially  __________________________________________________________________________ Dollars 
($_______________), lawful money of the United States of America, for the payment of which sum Principal and Surety bind 
themselves, their heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.  Said 
contract (hereinafter referred to as "the Contract") is for ____________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ and is 
made a part hereof by this reference.  The Contract includes the original agreement as well as all documents attached 
thereto or made a part thereof and all addenda, amendments, change orders, and any other document modifying, adding to 
or deleting from said Contract any portion thereof. 
 
This Bond is executed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington and is subject to all provisions thereof and the 
Charter and ordinances of City insofar as they are not in conflict therewith, and is entered into for the use and benefit of City, 
and all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors, and materialmen, and all persons who supply such person or persons, or 
subcontractors, with provisions or supplies for the carrying on of the work covered by the Contract.  
 
THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that if Principal faithfully performs all the provisions of the Contract and 
pays all laborers, mechanics, and subcontractors and materialmen, and all persons who supply such person or persons, or 
subcontractors, with provisions and supplies for the carrying on of such work; and pays all other just debts incurred in the 
performance of such work (provided, however, that the conditions of this obligation shall not apply to any money loaned or 
advanced to any such contractor or subcontractor or other person in the performance of such work); and to the extent 
permitted by law indemnifies, defends, and holds City harmless from all cost and damage by reason of Principal’s default, 
then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
THE PARTIES FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
(1) Surety hereby consents to, and waives notice of, any alteration, change order, or other modification of the Contract and 
any extension of time made by City, except that any single or cumulative change order amounting to more than twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the penal sum of this bond shall require Surety's written consent. 
 
(2) Surety recognizes that the Contract includes provisions for additions, deletions, and modifications to the work or 
Contract Time and the amounts payable to Principal (i.e., Vendor/Contractor).  No such change or any combination thereof 
shall void or impair Surety's obligation hereunder. 
(3) Whenever City has declared Principal (i.e., Vendor/Contractor) to be in default and City has given Surety written notice 
of such declaration, Surety shall promptly (in no event more than thirty [30] days following receipt of such notice) specify, in 
written notice to City, which of the following actions Surety intends to take to remedy such default, and thereafter shall: 
 (a)   Remedy the default within fifteen (15) days after its notice to City; or 
 (b)   Assume within fifteen (15) days following its notice to City, full responsibility for the completion of the Contract in 
accordance with all of its provisions, and become entitled to payment of the balance of the Contract sum as provided in the 
Contract; or 
 (c)   Pay City upon completion of the Contract, in cash, the cost of completion together with all other reasonable costs 
and expenses incurred by City as a result of Principal’s (i.e.,Vendor/Contractor's) default, including but not limited to those 
incurred by City to mitigate its losses, which may include but are not limited to attorneys' fees and the cost of efforts to 
complete the work prior to Surety's exercising any option available to it under this Bond; or 
 (d)   Obtain a bid or bids for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon a  
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determination by City and Surety jointly of the lowest responsible bidder, arrange for one or more agreements between such 
bidder and City, and make available as work progresses (even though there is a default or a succession of defaults under 
such agreement(s) for completion arranged for under this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion of the 
Contract less the balance of the Contract price, but not exceeding, including other costs and damages for which Surety may 
be liable hereunder, the penal sum of this Bond.  The term "balance  
of the Contract price," as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total amount payable by City to Principal (i.e., 
Vendor/Contractor) under the Contract, less the amount properly paid by City to Principal (i.e., Vendor/Contractor). 
In addition to (a) through (d) above, Surety shall pay City all other reasonable costs and expenses incurred by City as a 
result of Principal’s (i.e. Vendor/Contractor’s) default, and prior to Surety’s exercising any option available to Surety under 
this bond. 
(4) The venue for any action arising out of or in connection with this bond shall be in King County, Washington. 
 
(5)    No right or action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other than The City of Seattle 
and, to the extent required under RCW Chapter 39, all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors, and materialmen, and all persons 
who supply such person or persons, or subcontractors, with provisions or supplies for the carrying on of the work covered by 
the Contract. 
(6) Nothing of whatever kind or nature whatsoever that will not discharge the Principal shall operate as a discharge or a 
release of liability of the Surety, any law, rule of equity, or usage relating to the liability of sureties to the contrary 
notwithstanding. 
(7) No rider, amendment, or other document modifies this Bond unless made in writing and accepted by Principal, Surety 
and the City. 
(8) Surety shall give to Principal and to City not less than sixty (60) days’ prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, of the effective date of the expiration or cancellation of this bond.  Notice to City shall be mailed to: DEA, P. O. 
Box 94687, Seattle, WA 98124-4687or delivered to DEA at 700 5th Av., Ste. 4112, Seattle, WA 98104-5042.  
(9) Principal must provide City with a replacement bond, acceptable to City, not less than thirty (30) days before the 
effective date of this bond’s expiration or cancellation as specified in the Surety’s notice provided pursuant to Condition (8) 
above.  
(10) If Principal fails to provide the replacement bond not less than thirty (30) days before the effective date of this bond’s 
expiration or cancellation as specified in the Surety’s notice provided pursuant to Condition (8) above, such failure shall 
constitute a default under this bond, for which City may make a claim, and Surety shall be obligated to make immediate 
payment under this bond of all sums. 
 
SURETY’S QUALIFICATIONS:  Every Surety named on this bond must either appear on the United States 
Treasury Department's most current list (Circular 570 as amended or superseded) or have a current rating of at 
least A-:VII in A. M. Best’s Key Rating Guide.  Additionally, every Surety named on this bond must be authorized by 
the Washington State Insurance Commissioner to transact business as a surety in the State of Washington. 
 
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SIGNATURES:  This bond must be signed by the president or a vice-president of a 
corporation; the managing general partner of a partnership; managing joint venturer of a joint venture; manager of a 
limited liability company (“LLC”) or, if no manager has been designated, a member of such entity; a general partner of 
a limited liability partnership (“LLP”); or the owner(s) of a sole proprietorship.  If the bond is signed by any other 
representative, the Principal must attach written proof of that signer’s authority to bind the Principal, identifying and 
quoting the provision in the corporate articles of incorporation, bylaws, Board resolution, partnership agreement, 
certificate of formation, power of attorney, or other document authorizing delegation of signature authority to such 
signer, and confirmation acceptable to the Seattle City Attorney’s Office that such delegation was in effect on the date 
the bond was signed. 
 


A NOTARY PUBLIC MUST ACKNOWLEDGE EACH SIGNATURE ON THIS BOND. 
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FOR THE SURETY:     FOR THE PRINCIPAL: 
 
By    By:    _   
 (Signature of Attorney-in-Fact)    (Signature of authorized signer for Principal) 


              
 (Type or print name of Attorney-in-Fact)    (Type or print NAME of signer for Principal) 


              
          (Type or print telephone number for Attorney-in-Fact)  (Type or print TITLE of signer for Principal) 


 
 


STATE OF     ) 
     ) ss: ACKNOWLEDGMENT FOR PRINCIPAL 
COUNTY OF     ) 
 
I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ______________________ is the person who appeared before me, said 
person acknowledged that he/she signed this bond, and on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute the bond on 
behalf of the Principal as the Principal’s free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned therein. 
WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed this _____ day of ________________, ________. 
 
               
 (Signature of Notary Public)     (Print or type name of Notary Public) 


Notary Public in and for the state of      residing at        
My commission expires                              .    SEAL  
 
 
STATE OF     ) 
     ) ss: ACKNOWLEDGMENT FOR SURETY 
COUNTY OF     ) 
 
I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ______________________ is the person who appeared before me as the 
Attorney-in-Fact for the Surety that executed the foregoing bond, acknowledged said bond to be the free and voluntary act and 
deed of the Surety for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that he/she is authorized to execute said 
bond on behalf of the Surety, and that the seal affixed on said bond or the annexed Power of Attorney is the corporate seal of 
said Surety. 
WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed this _____ day of ________________, ________. 
 
               
 (Signature of Notary Public)     (Print or type name of Notary Public) 


Notary Public in and for the state of      residing at        
My commission expires                              .    SEAL  
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